Kansas Association of City/County Management

Kansas Association of City/County Management
Board of Directors Meeting & Retreat
Westwood
August 21, 2025
11:00 a.m. — 3:00 p.m.

Agenda
A See Attachment

—

Call Meeting to Order, Leslie Herring
2. |Approval of Board Minutes, April 23 meeting A |
Treasurer’s Report
a. |Approve Financial Statement A |
b. |Approve Quarterly Invoice A |
Board Appointments / Nominating Committee
Senior Advisor Appointment A |
y-Laws Review A |
Strategic Plan — Work Plan Development
ppcoming Events A |
Next Board Meeting:
a. November: Zoom, date TBD
10. Other Business
a. KACM Website
b. KCCM Conference Dates

N

0 Nk



Kansas Association of City/County Management

Kansas Association of City/County Management
Board of Directors Meeting
Lawrence
April 23, 2025
Minutes

In attendance: Leslie Herring, Kiel Mangus, Ethan Reimer, Thatcher Moddie, Melissa McCoy, Shawn Henessee,
Tim Vandall, Will Johnson, Daniela Rivas Virtual: Kelly Passauer Absent: Taggart Wall, Chris Engel, Matt Stiles
League Staff present: Kate Cooley

Call Meeting to Order: Leslie Herring called the meeting at 3:42. She requested item #3 be moved to later in

the agenda due to Michael Ort’s later arrival.

2. Board Minutes from February 21, 2025: Kiel Mangus made a motion to approve the minutes, Kelly Passauer
seconded. The motion carried.

3. Treasurer’s Report: Michael Ort reported membership dues continue to be collected, and there are not a lot of
other expenses or revenues to report to date. A CD was recently renewed based on competitive short-term
rates. The second CD KACM carries, however, will need addressed, as it is coming up for maturation in May.
Will Johnson made a motion to give discretion to Leslie Herring & Michael Ort to coordinate with Rynae
Redd to determine the additional amount from cash reserves to be added to this and renew for an additional
six months once Rynae shops rates. Seconded by Kiel Mangus. Motion carried.

a. Approve Financial Statement: Will Johnson made a motion to approve the financial statement as
presented, Melissa McCoy seconded. Motion carried. The Q2 and Q3 invoices will be included at the
August retreat for approval at the same time.

4. Committee Reports

a. Awards/Recognition: Ethan Reimer reported the awards committee met April 14 to determine
scholarship recipients. A summary of the committee’s decision is included in the packet. Ethan
indicated he would send out rising star scholarships soon to keep aligned with both KMU and KMEA
sponsorships to be awarded in June. Melissa McCoy made a motion to approve the scholarship
recipients as presented; Daniela Rivas seconded. Motion carried.

During the awards/recognition committee report, the board also discussed Life Members, whether the
parameters needed to be updated/addressed, and who might be eligible for such status this year for
recognition. The board determined there was no need at this time to change the Life Member status,
and reinforced it was a board decision (not members asking for such status). The board discussed
individuals to be granted Life Members status for 2025. Kiel Mangus made a motion to award Life
Status to Allen Dinkel for his contributions to the profession. The motion was seconded by Thatcher
Moddie. Motion carried. Kate Cooley is to reach out to Allen later this year to invite him to the
KACM Annual Conference in Emporia to present the award.



Kansas Association of City/County Management

Finally, the board discussed whether there was merit to appoint a separate nomination committee,
specifically in relation to the Buford Watson Award, as there was not a recipient in 2024 due to the
names put forward not qualifying. Ethan Reimer reminded the board names are included on the list
two years post-nomination. The board decided that a separate nomination committee was not
necessary at this time, however, recommended the awards notice be cross posted to other affiliate
associations (clerks, mayors) to collect nominations from outside the profession. In addition, the
board could also look to nominate from within if more names are needed to be brought forward.
Daniela Rivas volunteered to pull together information to send to the affiliates to promote the Buford
Award to gather additional nominations.

Education & Conference Planning: Melissa McCoy reported the KCCM Spring Conference schedule
can be found in an email sent by KU on 4/17. She also said planning was underway for 2025 KACM
Annual Conference, calling attention to the proposed agenda included in the packet. There was
discussion about the difficulty finding a quality keynote speaker within the conference budget, with
Kate Cooley explaining the process. Kiel Mangus made a motion granting the ability for Kate, KACM
President and KACM VP to seek additional sponsorships or raise that budgeted amount as needed to
hire a quality keynote speaker. Ethan Reimer seconded. Motion carried.

Foundation Fund Trustees: in the absence of Don Cawby, Michael Ort reminded the board about the
Foundation BBQ Fundraiser the next evening. Tickets were still available. The other upcoming
fundraiser would be Hamburger Mary’s on June 28. The Foundation asked the board to consider
donating items, purchasing gift cards, or collecting other door prizes for that event. Will Johnson
volunteered to donate KSU football tickets. Melissa McCoy would also donate a gift basket, as would
Leslie Herring also. Michael and Leslie encouraged those who volunteered to donate to connect with
Don Cawby & Courtney to coordinate.

Membership: Daniela Rivas requested that if the membership committee were to meet again at the
annual conference, better communication amongst the membership would be appreciated, or finding
another time to meet, as there weren’t any current members who came to the discussion room at the
community center. She reported about one of the priorities from last year was to better market the
profession to citizens or other outside groups. While the League is helping with a LinkedIn page, she
asked whether there was merit to reinstate the Facebook page. She asked the board what a social
media campaign might look like. The board brainstormed whether a toolkit could be created for cities
to share (either on social media or for a community member group/PSA). Another idea was for the
board/association to go make presentations to the MPA program at each of the respective universities
in the state. Overall, more encouragement toward younger generations as they enter the workforce to
seek joining KACM may be beneficial.

5. Other business

a.

Website speed: Kate Cooley reported that several complaints had been fielded regarding the slow
speeds of the website. After investigation, the current website provider alerted both Kate and Nikki
that some of the features had obsolete technology and may require additional funding to improve
functionality. The board directed Kate to find out a dollar amount for a possible website update and



Kansas Association of City/County Management

what that entails. Should the amount be more than what was initially paid, it may be time to put out a
new RFP and seek a new provider.

b. KACM Advocacy for maintaining Council-Manager form of Government: following the news on
Wichita potentially dropping the city manager form of government, Leslie Herring reached out to
ICMA on this issue for support, with Jason Grant responding. A referendum campaign funded by
ICMA could be secured and ICMA could also provide editorial content. Can speak on behalf of a 3rd
party expert to inform the public. If the conversation goes again toward a strong mayor form of
government, the KACM board can call on ICMA for support.

c. KACM Feature in Business View Magazine: Leslie Herring informed the board she had been
approached by Business View Magazine to provide quotes and information for a feature article.

d. Further discussion on possibly naming scholarships (via conversation from Foundation): the board
discussed the merits of whether there should be a special committee formed to further explore the
option to name scholarships after individuals and propose to the membership for consideration. The
board would evaluate next steps and discussed whether the committee could also look at additional
parameters for the scholarship requirements when it comes time to award (GPA, work experience,
etc.) for future rankings. The discussion was tabled for the time being.

Approve KACM Membership Meeting Agenda: Daniela Rivas made a motion to approve the membership
meeting agenda as presented in the packet and Ethan Reimer seconded; motion carried.
Upcoming Events: Leslie Herring directed the board to the upcoming events flyer contained in the packet.
Next Board Meeting:

a. June in conjunction with WSU Seminar TBD

b. August TBD, Westwood

c. November, Zoom

i. Leslie would further coordinate with Kate for future board meeting dates and send polls.

Adjourn: Melissa McCoy made a motion to adjourn the meeting, Daniela Rivas seconded. Meeting adjourned
at 5:41p.m.



KACM Financials - 2025
Revenues 7/31/2025 2025 Budget 2024 2023 2022 Fall Conference Breakdown
Membership Dues 40,105.00 36,500 36,135.00 37,425.00 35,870.00 2024 2023 2022
Annual Conference 30,000 36,480.00 29,370.00 34,135.00| [Revenues $ 36,480.00 | $ 29,370.00 | $ 34,135.00
Interest 3,5650.43 4,000 5,364.96 5,950.95 1,123.91| |Expenditures | $ 33,469.00 | $§ 23,740.40 | $ 20,935.82
Senior Advisor ICMA Reimbursement 288.53 3,000 1,023.35 2,752.62 2,647.00( |Net $ 3,011.00($% 562960 | 9% 13,199.18
Jobs Newsletter 1,300.00 4,000 3,600.00 4,550.00 5,050.00
Transfer from Reserve
Total Revenue $ 45,243.96 77,500 $ 82,603.31 $ 80,048.57 $ 78,825.91
Expenditures
League Administration Fee 10,875.00 14,000 13,500.00 13,000.00 12,500.00
ICMA Planning Conference 1,500
ICMA Regional Conference 1,650 0.00 651.04
ICMA Reception 3,500 3,161.14 5,720.81 2,892.84
ICMA Coaching Program 950 950.00 950.00 950.00
ICMA Future of Prof Mngment Fund 1,000 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Digital Marketing 650
Annual Conference 26,500 33,469.00 23,740.40 20,935.82
Scholarship 7,000.00 7,000 7,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00
Conference Scholarships 500
Rising Star Scholarships 1,000.00 3,000 3,000.00 1,500.00 3,000.00
Marketing 3,000
Board Expenses 141.05 1,000 238.00 358.41 976.78
Insurance/Bonds 1,086.00 1,085 1,085.00 1,085.00 1,107.00
Foundation Expenses 1,000 2,280.43 654.28
Service/Bank Charges 37.07 25 22.05 24.85 25.70
KACM Foundation Donation 200 150.00
Plaques/Awards 250
Miscellaneous
Website Expense 1,989.62 4,200 4,121.73 3,251.49 3,251.49
Postage 22.16 40 17.93 22.16 41.97
Miscellaneous 105.00 150 0.00 60.00
Senior Advisor Expenses 577.06 6,000 2,226.10 5,540.60 5,293.97
Total Expenditures 22,832.96 77,200 69,940.95 65,534.15 60,280.89
Net Income (Loss) $ 22,411.00 300 $ 12,662.36 $ 14,514.42 $ 18,545.02
Ending Cash and CD Balance $ 121,541.57 $ 108,879.21 $ 94,364.79
Estimated Cash and CD Balance $ 143,953
Investments
Certificates of Deposit Cap Fed $ 76,414

Updated on 8/4/2025




KACM Investments as of July 31, 2025

Investment Investment Principal Placement Maturity Interest Interest to be
Location Type Number Amount Date Term Date Rate credited this term
Capitol Federal #1 Certificate of Deposit CD 9065600554 36,414 28-Mar-25 21 mos 24-Dec-26 4.02% 2,561
Capitol Federal #2 Certificate of Deposit CD 2731329056 40,000 6-May-25 6 mos 4-Nov-25 3.44% 688
Summary Tables
Number of investments: 2 $80,000 —
$75,000 M
Total invested: 76,414 270000
$65,000
$60,000
Average investment amount: 38,207 $55,000
$50,000
$45,000
Average rate of return: 3.73% $40,000
$35,000
$30,000 -
Year-to-date checking interest: 1,625 $25,000 -
$20,000 - : : : : : :
1st Qtr 2024 2nd Qtr 2024 3rd Qtr 2024 4th Qtr 2024 1st Qtr 2025 2nd Qtr 2025 3rd Qtr 2025
Interest Comparison
6
> o= o o o &
4 \ A'
3 =4 Seriesl
—4— Series3
2
1
0 ‘
1st Qtr 2024 2nd Qtr 2024 3rd Qtr 2024 4th Qtr 2024 1st Qtr 2025 2nd Qtr 2025 3rd Qtr 2025

Updated on 8/5/2025




C)LEAGUE

OF KANSAS MUNICIPALITIES
300 SW 8th Avenue, Suite 100, Topeka, KS 66603

CBiII To

Kansas Association of City/County Mgmnt i
300 SW 8th Ave., #100 I nvoice
Topeka, KS 66603 Date Invoice #
7/31/2025 10357
‘ Ordered By Terms Due Date
‘ Net 30 8/30/2025
Qty Description Rate Amount
1 KACM Administrative Fee, 2nd quarter 3,625.00‘ 3,625.00
1 KACM Website, 2nd quarter 600.00 600.00
1 KACM Administrative Fee, 3rd quarter 3,625.00 3,625.00
1 KACM Website, 3rd quarter 600.00 600.00
1 Mail Chimp, January - July 157.64 157.64
1 KACM domain renewal 31.98 31.98
1 Postage, January - July 22.16 22.16
1 KACM board meeting, April 23 141.05 141.05
1 KCCM Scholarship Winners lunch 105.00 105.00
1 Senior Advisors, 1st and 2nd quarters 577.06 577.06
1 KACM Foundation BBQ 135.00 135.00
Total $9,619.89
Payments/Credits $0.00
Balance Due $9,619.89/

Phone # E-mail

Web Site

-

C 785-354-9565

rredd@lkm.org

(
(

www.lkm.org

NN




913 709 8153 HANNES ZACHARIAS 7924 MULLEN RD
HZACHARIAS4@GMAIL.COM LENEXA, KS 66215

JUNE 3, 2025,

TO: JOHN DEARDOFF

DEAR JOHN:

I am writing to seek your assistance in forwarding my request to the KACM board to join the cadre of Senior
Advisors.

As you know, | have recently retired from the University of Kansas as the Robert A. Kipp Professor of Practice
with the School of Public Affairs and Administration, a position | have held since January 2019. This teaching
position followed my 30+ year career as a city and county administrator in Kansas and Missouri.

Having retired, | still would like to help teach, mentor, and inspire the current and next generation of public
administrators. | feel | can best do so by becoming a Senior Advisor with the Kansas Association of City/County
Management. To give you and the board a deeper understanding of my background, | have attached a copy of
my resume.

Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information to proceed with this request.

I look forward to working with you and the board to help further the practice of democratic and ethical
professional public administration in Kansas.

Warm regards,

it

Hannes Zacharias



RESUME, July, 2025

Hannes Zacharias
7924 Mullen, Lenexa, KS 66215
(913) 709-8153 (cell phone)
hzacharias4d@gmail.com

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY:

RETIRED (Jan 2025-present).
Devoted to Advancing my current personal life-left objectives:

e Strengthening my relationships with my family and friends

e Advocating for the Arkansas River and the world environment

e Creating a ‘culture of caring’ in the Kansas City Metro Region

e Teaching, motivating, and mentoring the current and next generation of public
servants.

ROBERT A. KIPP, ASSISTANT PROFESSOR OF PRACTICE, UNIV. OF KANSAS, SCHOOL OF PUBLIC

AFFAIRS AND ADMINISTRATION (Jan. 2019 to Jan. 2025)

The Assistant Professor of Practice position is responsible for bringing practical
application of public administration theory into the classroom, preparing passionate
students for a life in local, state, and nation public service. Additionally, the position
teaches public administrators how to lead in developing organization cultures that
focus on outcomes vs outputs and in creating an inclusive and mutually supportive
workforce geared toward constant improvement while doing public good. The position
also manages the MPA City/County Management Fellowship program including
coordination of full & part-time internships, professional development activities (field
trips, alumni networking, etc.), and assists with national recruitment of MPA
City/County Management Fellows. The position also serves as a career counselor to
MPA students interested in local government.

Master Level Classes Taught:

e PUAD 837 Advanced Budgeting and Finance.

e PUAD 857 Performance Management and Governance.

e PUAD 851 Infrastructure Management

e PUAD 841 Context, Ethics, and Legal Environment of Public Administration in
the United States.

e PUAD 892 Public Administration Internship (two sections)

e PUAD 894 Professional Development Seminar |: Public Admin Contemporary


mailto:hzacharias4@gmail.com
https://kupa.ku.edu/curriculum-ccm-fellows
https://kupa.ku.edu/curriculum-ccm-fellows
https://kupa.ku.edu/curriculum-ccm-fellows

Issues & Competency Assessment (two sections)

e PUAD 895/898 Professional Development Seminar Il: Leading to Create a
Culture for High Performance

e PUAD 862 Emergency Management in the United States: Theory and Practice.

Undergraduate Classes Taught
e PUAD 432 Conducting the Public’s Business, Ethical

COUNTY MANAGER, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS (Sept. 2009 to Jan. 2018)

This position oversees the operations of Johnson County Government serving over
580,000 residents. Coordinate the delivery of services provided by more than 3,900
employees and responsible for preparing and submitting the county’s annual operating
and capital budgets totaling more than $1 billion. Appoint 19 county department
directors and exert influence over the 11 remaining line departments. Act as the head of
the county’s management team and is accountable for organizational performance,
achievement, and service delivery in the daily operations of Johnson County. Implement
policies and directives established by the Johnson County Board of Commissioners.

Selected County Initiatives:

e Organized the successful passage of a 10-year, quarter cent public safety sales
tax, to use for the construction of a 350,000 sq. ft., $182 million County
Courthouse and new Medical Examiner facility.

e Responsible for the reconstruction of a 20 MGD sewer plant with a total cost
exceeding
$280 million.

e Responsible for the construction and opening of a new Arts and Heritage Center.

e Implemented organizational cultural change using the High Performing
Organization model.

e Reduced the county workforce by 12% (430 employees) during the recent
recession, reduced on-going expenses by $47 million, and improved
community satisfaction to over 90%

e Maintain AAA bond rating from all three national rating agencies.

¢ Implemented regional collaboration initiative titled “CORE4” involving all
department leaders in Johnson County, Wyandotte County Ks, Kansas City Mo,
and Jackson County Mo. This process has yielded collaborative successes in
regional transit, events (Republican National Convention bid), youth job fair,
tax reciprocity, human services coordination, watershed management, Law
enforcement, economic development incentives, regional arts planning, and
Kansas City International Airport improvements.

e Fostered a national model on Criminal Justice Reform reducing jail population,
diverting the mentally ill and juveniles from incarceration, and managing pre-
trial populations to avoid “debtors prison” for low-income people.

e Fostered financing and planning for significant expansion of quality of life
programs include the arts, libraries, parks and recreation, and transit.

¢ Maintained Johnson Counties premier standing in Emergency Medical Services,


https://kupa.ku.edu/curriculum-ccm-fellows
https://kupa.ku.edu/curriculum-ccm-fellows
https://kupa.ku.edu/curriculum-ccm-fellows

Public Health, services to the mentally ill and those who are developmentally
disabled, Community Corrections, Justice Information Management, Human
Services integration, Wastewater treatment, and financial and budget
management.

DEPUTY COUNTY MANAGER, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS (Jan. 2005 to Sept. 2009)

Assist the County Manager in a day-to-day and long-term strategic management of
Johnson County Government Departments. Led the delivery of emergency and human
services to 520,000 Johnson County residents. Direct reporting departments include:
Emergency

Communications Center (911), Emergency Management, Emergency Medical Services
(MED- ACT), Community Corrections, Public Health, Human Services and Aging, and the
Johnson County Museum of History. Management liaison activities included Johnson
County Developmental Supports, Johnson County Mental Health, and Johnson County
Library. These departments and agencies had a combined employment of 1790 people
with a combined budget of $156 million.

Committee Responsibilities:

¢ Regional Homeland Security Coordinating Council (Co-Chair). A 35 member
council representing 12 different committees engaged in all aspects of
emergency management and homeland security responsible for overseeing the
expenditure of $65 million in Federal Homeland Security funding for the Kansas
City metro region.

¢ United Way of Greater Kansas City (Board Member) A 56 member board
governing all aspects of the $40 million United Way program for the greater
Kansas City metro area.

e 5-County Transportation Planning Steering Committee (Committee
Member) A 12 member committee from Johnson, Wyandotte, Douglas,
Leavenworth, and Miami counties charged with recommending transit and
transportation needs for the area through 2030.

¢ Human Service Coalition (Chairman). A committee of 12 Departmental
Directors and Agency Heads representing County, State, and Non-profit
human service providers, working together to coordinate services, and advise
the Johnson County Board of County Commissioners on human service issues.

e Johnson County Wireless Broadband Development Task Force (Chairman). An
eight member committee comprised of the CIO’s and Public Safety
Communication Directors from Lenexa, Overland Park, Olathe, and Johnson
County charged with exploring the deployment of broadband wireless systems
for all Johnson County local governments.

Selected County Initiatives:




Actively engaged in budget reduction and services prioritization planning for all
county government departments.

Initiating efforts to plan and take full advantage of Federal stimulus funding.
Oversaw planning efforts leading to the development of new countywide 700
megahertz interoperable emergency radio communications system and the
construct of new “state of the art” multi-agency emergency communications
center.

Oversaw the construction of new facilities for adult offenders involved in
Community Corrections.

Oversaw the development of new research based programs in juvenile and
adult corrections including expanded bond supervision, work release, offender
reintegration, a Criminal Justice Advisory Council, “notice to appear” program,
and a Community Resource Center for young offenders and other troubled
youth.

Oversaw strategic planning efforts establishing the future vision for Human
Services and Aging, Community Corrections, and History Museum Departments.
Oversaw privatizing the Johnson County Nursing Center.

Oversaw the development of an innovative integrated case management
system designed to increase client success, reduce duplication of

services, and guide appropriate intervention for vulnerable residents and
their families.

Coordinated the legislative program for Johnson County government.
Oversaw innovative delivery of congregate meals for seniors in area food
centers, referred to as the “CHAMPS” program.

Oversaw the development of a volunteer transportation program for
disabled and needy residents referred to as “catch a ride”.

Oversaw the expanded role of Public Health as “first responders” for bio-
terrorism events.

Oversaw the planning for a new Juvenile Services Center.

Oversaw improvements in Emergency Management including Continuity of
Operations Plans, Hazard Mitigation Plans, and redevelopment of the EOC.
Oversaw improvements in Emergency Medical Services including a new central
services center, partnership deployments with Overland Park, and
redeployment of existing assets to underserved areas including De Soto and
Shawnee.

Oversaw the creation of a Percent for Art Program and the Public Arts
Commission.

Oversaw the creation of an Executive Exchange Program for county
department heads to meet and exchange management ideas with their
counterparts in other like organizations.

Actively engaged in advancing “best management” practice in the
organization including: Employee engagement efforts, citizen survey, on-
going strategic planning (GOST), wellness initiatives, and creating a culture
of on-going collective learning.



ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS (Sept. 2001 to Jan. 2005)

Assist the County Manager and Deputy County Manger in day-to-day and long-term
strategic management of Johnson County. Involved in leading 1600 employees in the
delivery of emergency and human services to 480,000 Johnson County residents with
combined budget of over $145 million. Direct reporting departments include:
Emergency Communications Center (911), Emergency Management, MED-ACT,
Corrections, Human Services and Aging, Johnson County Museums, and Johnson
County Nursing Center. Coordinate the legislative program for Johnson County
Government.

CITY MANAGER, HAYS, KANSAS (Sept. 1992 to Sept. 2001)

Community Profile: Hays is a full service university community with a population of
20,000 astride I-70 in north central Kansas, with a workforce of 160 full-time employees
organized under three employee unions and an annual operating budgie is $24 million.
City Departments include: police, fire and inspection services, public works
(water/wastewater utilities, streets, sanitation/recycling, storm water), airport, parks,
community development, tourism, personnel, city clerk, engineering, and information
services. By successful responding to water shortages, closure of the county landfill, and
severe shortages, the community was named an “All American City” in 1996.

Maijor infrastructure Projects:

e Completed a $5.2 million wastewater treatment plant upgrade.

¢ In final design on water desalination plant and 35 mile water transmission line
project,
$22 million.

¢ Installed PCE contamination water remediation system ($1.3 million).

¢ Installed new water tower and utilities, opening the community for
development north of interstate 70 ($2.5 million).

e Purchased 7,000 acre water ranch located 80 miles south of Hays for long-
term water use ($4.2 million).

¢ Installed fiber network for all City of Hays facilities.

e Constructed a new aquatic center involving passage of three year half-cent
sales tax (passage by 69%), cost $4.3 million.

e Secured funding for a four-lane, divided median roadway north of I-70 ($14
million).

¢ Completed expansion of Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course to 18 holes.

e Reconstructed 2.5 miles of arterial streets ($9.1 million).

¢ Final design for new crosswind runway ($3.6 million).

Economic Development:

e Developed $2.4 million public/private cash incentive package to recruit
Sykes Enterprises currently employing 750 computer technicians.
e Developed a new 60-acre “fiber park” for information technology companies.



e Passed a half-cent sales tax to recruit Cessna Aircraft.

e Assisted in physician recruitment leading to a $28.5 million expansion of Hays
Medical Center including the DeBakey Heart Institute.

e Assisted in the establishment of Sternberg Museum of Natural History
attracting over 150,000 visitors annually.

e International business recruitment/retention efforts including regular trips to
Japan for Yuasa, Inc., Kansas’ largest Japanese investor, employing 550 in Hays.

e Assisted in making Ellis County No. 5 in “Wealth”, No. 3 in “Economic Strength”,
and No. 1 in Employment in Kansas (K-State Research and Extension).

e Created downtown revitalization district completing a $4 million redevelopment
project with the National Development Council.

Municipal Planning:

e Community Parks and Recreation master plan.

e Hays Aquatic Park redevelopment plan.

e Community Center development plan.

¢ Community water planning including: drought planning, wellhead
protection, water conservation, aquifer management and 50 year long-term
water supply planning.

e Water and wastewater transmission/collection master plan.

e Storm water master plan.

e Downtown Redevelopment Plan.

e Affordable housing study and development plan.

¢ Community strategic plan.

e Complete revision of 1973 comprehensive land use plan.
e Street maintenance master plan

e GIS community strategic plan.

e Annually updated 5-year capital improvement plan.

Government Finances:

e Received GFOA (Government Finances Officers Association) Budget
presentation award for 1996, 1998, and 1999 for City of Hays budgets.

e Developed retail sales tax business recruitment efforts (north I-70).

¢ Maintained stable property tax rate approximately 33 mills throughout the
last seven years (bottom 40% among all cities in Kansas over 10,000
population).

e Instituted benchmarking and performance measures in annual budget process.

e Secured $13.5 million in grants during the last two years from KDOT for
Highway and street improvements, KDOC&H for Economic Development and
tourism, KDHE for ground water contamination remediation and
recycling/composing initiatives, and FAA for a new crosswind runway.

Citizen Participation Initiatives:




e Oversaw community visioning process.

o Instituted Citizens Police Academy.

¢ Instituted School Resources Officer Program.

e Instituted Community Oriented Policing Program.

e Instituted water conservation programs resulting in a 47% reduction in water
use and one of the lowest per capita water consumption rates in a five state
area.

e Created a voluntary community curb-side recycling program with an 80%
usage rate, reducing the solid waste stream by 20%

e Created physician recruitment program securing 50 new doctors for the
community.

o Instituted the Community Care Council to coordinate community giving to
non-profit organization.

CITY ADMINISTRATOR, BOONVILLE, MISSOURI (Feb. 1988 to Sept. 1992)

Boonville is a full service community of 7,100 with a city workforce of 65 full-time and
60 part- time employees and an annual budget of $7 million. The City Administrator
advises the eight- member city council and Mayor on all Municipal issues. City functions
include: Police, fire, water/wastewater treatment, streets, sanitation, landfill, airport,
parks and recreation, health and building inspection, downtown “Main Street”
development, community development, and economic development.

Accomplishments:

e Secured $23 million in state funding to replace old Highway 40 bridge over the
Missouri River.

e Established a 130 acre $3 million industrial park using Missouri’s first publicly
issued tax increment finance district bond, which attracted Caterpillar Inc.,
employing 150 people.

e Developed a $1.1 million public/private partnership for downtown
development and streetscape improvements.

e Secured passage of a one-half cent sales tax reauthorization by 84% and water
revenue bond to finance a $1.5 million intake structure in the Missouri River.

e Developed 3.6 miles of the M.K.T. (Katy) trail.

e Established new 911 system.

¢ Developed historic preservation ordinances.

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER, LAWRENCE, KANSAS (Aug. 1984 to Feb. 1988)

Assisted former City Manager Buford M. Watson Jr. (President of I.C.M.A. 1986-87) in
daily management functions.

Accomplishments:




e Provided staff function for the Lawrence Urban Renewal Authority and
coordinated its plan for a $41 million 360,000 sq. ft. downtown retail-shopping
complex.

e Lobbied on behalf of the city in the Kansas Legislature.

e Assisted in labor negotiations between the city and its fire and police unions.

e Directed efforts to establish a downtown Business Improvement District.

e Prepared grant applications to the Kansas Department of Commerce leading
to the selection of downtown Lawrence as one of the initial “Main Street”
communities in Kansas.

e Coordinated activities of the Lawrence Arts Commission including the creation
of the “Downtown Lawrence Sculpture” program.

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR/CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER, KANSAS ARTS COMMISSION (Dec. 1980 to Aug
1984)

Assisted communities in the historic theatre renovations, community art facilities
acquisitions and expansions, and general arts administration. Monitored all state grants
for the agency.

Assisted the director in legislative testimony, budget preparations, and media relations.
Organized and implemented grant writing workshops throughout Kansas. Coordinated
and published grant application materials.

FEDERAL GRANT MANAGER, U.S. DEPT. OF COMMERCE (Oct. 1979 to Dec. 1980)

Administered $2 million in industrial development grants to Kansas communities for the
Ozarks Regional Commission under the U.S. Dept. of Commerce and the Kansas
Governor’s Office.

Assisted communities in grants preparation and presentation before the Council of
Governors of the Commission. Monitored all grant expenditure for compliance with
federal regulations.

Assisted in the selection of consultants and engineers for a wide variety of economic
development projects.

ASSISTANT TO THE DIRECTOR OF TRAVEL AND TOURISM, KS. DEPT. OF COMMERCE (June 1979
to Oct. 1979)

Organized and managed all of Kansas’ tourist information centers. Developed and
promoted driving tours throughout Kansas. Represented the director at state and
regional conferences, the legislature, and with the media.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CHIEF LOBBYIST, ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF KANSAS (June 1978 to June
1979)

Represented all 60,000 college students in the Kansas Regents system. Managed
lobbying efforts before the Kansas Legislature and the Kansas Board of Regents on
issues related to university professor salaries and evaluation, university academic



programs, and university tuition. Administered a Topeka office staff of three and offices
of each of the six college campuses.

EDUCATION

Masters of Public Administration, University of Kansas (1988)
Masters Thesis: “A study of three Retail Projects Proposed Between 1977 and 1987 for
Downtown Lawrence, Kansas.” 3.8 G.P.A.

Bachelor of General Studies, Wichita State University (1979)

TEACHING OPPORTUNITIES, PUBLICATIONS, AND WORKSHOPS

e Kansas Humanities, Speakers Bureau Lecturer (2022-present):
o City and County Governments in Kansas: What do they do and how are they
financed
o Rediscovering the Arkansas River
e Osher Institute, Lecturer (2020-present)
o City and County Governments in Kansas: What do they do and how are they
financed
o Rediscovering the Arkansas River
e Adjunct Instructor (Masters Level) University of Kansas:
o “The Role, Context, and Ethics of Public Administration in American Society”
(Spring Semester 2016 and 2017)
o Public Administration-Intergovernmental Relations in Emergency Management”
(Spring 2018)
e Guest Lecturer (ongoing) “Practicing Change and Leadership in Public Organizations”,
Command and General Staff College, Ft. Leavenworth.
e Guest Lecturer (ongoing) “Exercising Leadership in Organizations” Emerging Leaders
Program, University of Kansas.
e Keynote Speaker, “Value of Public Service”
o Mo./Kan. Human Resource Managers annual conference
o Riley County in-service annual conference
e High Performance Organizations, Kansas Association of Counties and in house
instructor (on- going)

e Practitioner in Residence, University of Kansas, MPA program, (On-going).

e Wi-Fi Deployment in Johnson County, Presentation at PTI conference.

e History of Johnson County Kansas, (on-going).

e Water Conservation, Water exploration, and New Aquifer development, (on-going)
e Kansas water transfer act law.

e Regional water issues.

e Community recycling program.

e Yard waste composting.

e Small town survival.

e Downtown revitalization using the Main Street approach.



A representative sample of groups presented to include:

e Command and General Staff College, US Army, Ft. Leavenworth
¢ National Association of Counties

e Kansas Association of Counties

e League of Kansas Municipalities.

e Leadership Kansas.

e Kansas University Masters in Public Administration students.

e Midwestern States Water Law Conference.

e “Conserve 93,” a bi-annual international conference on water issues.
e Kansas City Attorneys Association.

e Kansas University Faculty Training Program.

e Water use in Kansas Conferences.

e Kansas Rural Development of Health and Environment.

e Numerous state and regional conferences.

NATIONAL AND STATE COMMITTEES AND OFFICES

e American Society for Public Administration, Kansas Chapter board member (presently)

e National Association of County Administrators, Past President and Board Member

e ICMA’s Advisory Board on Graduate Education, board member

e Senior Executive Institute, University of Virginia, advisory board

e Leadership Kansas, board member, term 2008-2009.

e League of Kansas Municipalities governing body, past board member.

e Kansas association of City/County Management, Past President.

e International City/County Management Association (ICMA), National Conference
Planning Committee, past member.

e Kansas Geological Survey Advisory Council, member - 2002-2005

e Governors Policy Board for Geographical Information Systems (GIS), past board member.

e Governor’s Task Force on Water Quality, past member.

e Heart of America, Boys Scout of America, past Council Commissioner and
executive board member.

CERTIFICATIONS AND HONORS
Edwin Q. Stene Award for Managerial Excellence (2017) This award, by the University of Kansas,
City Managers and Trainees, recognizes individuals who have performed in an exceptional
manner in the management of the organization in which they are employed including the
establishment of new and innovative programs, resolution of a difficult organizational
problems, and completion of long-term organization goals.

Outstanding Public Administrator of the Year (2017), American Society of Public Administration,
Kansas Chapter

Buford Watson Jr. Award for Excellence in Public Management (2007) Annual award presented
by the Kansas Association of City/County Management to a member who best displays the
attributes of the late Buford Watson (Former President of ICMA). It is the highest honor given
by the association to a peer member.




MARC Regional Leadership Award (2007). Presented annually by the Mid America Regional
Council to individuals that have made outstanding leadership contributions to the Kansas City
Metro Region.

ICMA High Performance Leadership Academy (2022). Received Master Certification in High
Performance Leadership.

Senior Executive Institute (2011). University of Virginia

Certified Public Manager (2009) International Association of City/County Managers.

Incident Command System Training: Received EOC management training through the National
Fire Academy, Emmetsburg Va. and ICS course certification in level 100, 200, 700, 300, and 400.

Pi Alpha Alpha (1989) National Honor Society for public affairs and administration.

Outstanding Young Men of America (1988)

Presidential Management Intern (1984): One of 200 selected nationwide by the General Services
Administration, Washington D.C., to serve as an intern in top federal agencies.

Pi Sigma Alpha (1984): National honor society for political science.

Senior Honor Man (1978): One of five seniors selected at Wichita State University for outstanding
leadership and scholarship.

Student Body President, Wichita State University (1978)

Honorary Citizen of New Orleans (1976): Recognized for a solo kayak trip on the Arkansas and
Mississippi rivers from Dodge City, Kansas to New Orleans, Louisiana.

University of Kansas, Kansas Scholar (1973)

Eagle Scout, Boys Scouts of America (1968)

REGIONAL AND COMMUNITY BOARDS

e ArtKC, KC Regional Arts Organization, Policy Board member (currently)

e Johnson County Arts Council, Board member (currently)

e Heartland Conservation Alliance, Policy Committee member (currently)

e Johnson County Public Health, Leadership Council, board member (currently)

e Regional Homeland Security Coordinating Committee; Mid-America Regional
Council. (Co-Chair, 2002 to Jan, 2018),

e Regional Transportation Coordinating Committee; Mid-America Regional Council. (2015 to
2018),

e FEMA Region VIl advisory board, providing advice to the FEMA regional
administrator on Emergency Management and Homeland Security issues. (2013




to present)

Heart of America Council, Boy Scouts of America Council Commissioner, District
Chairman, District Commissioner, Scout Master, Committee Chairman._(2002-2016)
5-County Transportation Steering Committee (2012), Kansas Dept. of Transportation
Greater Kansas City Chamber of Commerce, Leadership Exchange (As available 2002-
2018)

United Way of Greater Kansas City, Charter Board member, (2007-2010)

Johnson County Wireless broadband development task force, chairman. (2008-2010)
Johnson County United Way, past board member, 2002-2006 (chair 2007-2008).
Leadership Kansas, class of 2007.

Leadership Lenexa, class of 2004.

Johnson County Children’s Coordinating Council, (2002-2018)

PROFESSIONAL
MEMBERSHIPS

International Association of City/County Management. (Life Member)
National Association of County Administrators (Life Member)
American Society for Public Administration.
Kansas Association of City/County Management.

HOBBIES

Travel, canoeing, music, and adventures...| have been active in scouting since of the age
of 8.

PERSONAL

Married to Marcia Higginson. We have three children, Lydia, Kurt, and Isabel



Bylaws
of

The Kansas Association of City/County Management
as of December 4, 2025December-3,-2020

ARTICLE |

SECTION 1. NAME. The name of the organization shall be the Kansas Association of
City/County Management (KACM).

SECTION 2. PRINCIPAL OFFICE. The principal office shall be the League of Kansas
Municipalities or other designated provider of administrative services. A permanent file
of all records of the association shall be placed in the Principal Office.

ARTICLE Il

SECTION 1. PURPOSE. The purpose of this association is to promote and improve the
proficiency of its members and public administration in Kansas. The association will
obtain its objectives by study, research, mutual counsel, and adoption of goals and
techniques for the betterment of our profession.

ARTICLE Il

SECTION 1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The association shall be governed by a board
of directors and officers. The board of directors shall consist of nine (9) members: two
(2) elected from each of three population categories and three (3) positions from an
open population category to better represent women, minorities, county managers and
assistants. The most recent past president shall be an ex-officio member of the board
without voting privileges. When a KACM member is serving on the ICMA Executive
Board and not a member of KACM'’s Board of Directors, they shall also be an ex-officio
member of the board without voting privileges.

The board shall elect the president, vice president, secretary and treasurer. Officers
may continue to serve in the officer progression even if they assume a new position in a
different city or county. Officers shall vote on all matters before the board but shall not
occupy one of the nine (9) board positions.

For purposes of selecting officers and members of the board, population categories for
cities and counties shall be as follows: small—0 to 4,000; medium—4,001 to 20,000;
large—over 20,000. Each population category shall consist of an equal, or as nearly equal
as possible, number of members. The board shall certify the number of members in each
category at the fall board meeting each year.



SECTION 2. TERM OF OFFICE. Members of the board shall be elected by the
membership for a two (2) year term of office. Members may serve for two consecutive
terms and later may be eligible to serve again if so elected.

SECTION 3. QUALIFICATIONS AND VACANCIES. Members of the board of directors
shall have at least two (2) years of experience in Kansas municipalities and be full
members in good standing in the Kansas Association of City/County Management.
Their term in office shall be two (2) years or until their successors are elected and have
qualified.

Upon resignation from the board or upon retirement or resignation of a board member
from active service as a chief administrative officer in the state of Kansas, the resulting
vacancy is to be filled for the remainder of the current term by a majority vote of the
board. A member so appointed continues to be eligible to serve two full terms. The
president and vice president shall not be eligible to succeed themselves in office. All
terms of office shall begin on January 1 following their election.

SECTION 4. DUTIES. The duties of the board of directors of this association shall be
such as by general usage are indicated by the title of the office. The board shall have
authority to contract with the League of Kansas Municipalities or other qualified provider
for those services deemed necessary. The board shall prepare and present for approval
by the membership an annual budget for the following fiscal year. The budget shall be
presented for consideration and approval at the annual fall meeting.

SECTION 5. MEETINGS. The board of directors shall meet quarterly and as needed.
Quorum shall be 7, which is a majority of the 13 board members eligible to vote.

ARTICLE IV

SECTION 1. STANDING COMMITTEES. The president shall appoint, with the approval
of the board of directors, such standing committees as are desirable and necessary to
carry out the business of the association.

ARTICLE V

SECTION 1. NOMINATION AND ELECTIONS. At the annual conference, members
shall elect the board of directors of the association. Candidates receiving the largest
number of votes shall be declared elected. The president shall appoint a nominating
committee comprised of four (4) current members of the board, one from each
population category, including the open classification, who shall nominate a full slate of
directors with consideration to representing the various regions of the state. There may
also be open nominations from the floor.

SECTION 2. VOTING BY PROXY. Voting by proxy shall not be allowed.



ARTICLE VI

SECTION 1. MEMBERSHIP. The members of this association shall be full, affiliate,
business affiliate, student, retired and life.

A. FULL. Full members shall have the privilege of voting and holding office.
Chief administrative officers (CAO), assistant CAOs, and senior-level staff
members may qualify for full voting membership based upon the following
criteria. A CAO qualifies for full voting membership if the individual:

a.

b.

C.

Occupies a position appointed by and directly responsible to an
elected representative or representatives;

Has significant responsibility in development and analysis of public
policy alternatives and implementation of policy once adopted;

Has major responsibility for preparation and administration of operating
and capital improvement budgets;

Exercises significant influence appointing key management personnel
(especially administrative and financial staff) of the local government;
Is recognized within the local government organization as the principal
general management professional and has a continuing direct
relationship with the operating department heads on implementation
and administration of programs; and

Is appointed to the position based on education, experience and
qualifications to perform the duties and responsibilities of the position
as defined by ICMA’s Practices for Effective Local Government
Management.

An assistant CAO or senior-level staff member is eligible for full voting
membership if the individual:

oo oo

Is appointed by the CAO;

Reports to the CAO;

Has significant general administrative responsibilities; and
Has the approval of the CAO.

B. AFFILIATE. Affiliate members shall have the privilege of voting but shall not
be eligible to hold office. In order Fto qualify for affiliate membership, the individual may
be any person who does not otherwise meet the qualifications for full membership and
who is currently, or was formerly, employed by a city, county, or university. Affiliate
members will retain access to the KACM listserv.

C. BUSINESS AFFILIATE. Business affiliates shall not have the privilege of
voting or holding office. To qualify as a business affiliate, the individual must complete
the application and pay the appropriate fees as established by the board. Business
affiliates shall not have access to the KACM listserv.




D. STUDENT. Any person registered as a student in a university public
administration program qualifies to join as a student. Students do not have the privilege
of voting or holding office.

E. RETIRED. A former KACM or ICMA member retired under KPERS or other
applicable retirement system qualifies to join as a retired member. Retirees do not have
the privilege of voting or holding office._Retired members should retain access to the
KACM listserv. Should a retiree enter into another line of work, such as an interim
manager, or consultant following retirement, the membership type shall be adjusted to
an affiliate member and billed as such.

F. LIFE. The board of directors may grant life memberships. To be eligible, the
individual must have been a full or affiliate member and currently retired from or no
longer employed in the profession. Life members shall pay no dues, hold no office, or
vote. Upon retiring from active service with a local government, any Full Member who
has completed twenty-five years of membership and, for those same twenty-five years,
has been eligible to be an officer of the Association may become a Life Member. Also,
any Full Member who has been eligible to be an officer of the Association for at least
fifteen years and retires from active service with a local government at age sixty-five or
older may become a Life Member. In addition, any Full Member who has retired from
active service with a local government and who, in the opinion of the Board Officers,
has made an outstanding contribution to the development of the profession may be
granted a Life Membership by vote of the Board Officers.

SECTION 2. APPLICATION. Application for membership in the association shall be
made to the board of directors. Proper forms for application shall be prepared and made
available to applicants by the board of directors.

SECTION 3. APPROVAL OF APPLICATION. Upon submission of the application and
payment of appropriate dues, such applicant shall be considered a provisional member.
For applicants moving to Kansas, their membership in good standing of another state’s
professional association shall be verified.

A. NOTICE TO MEMBERS. Notice of such application shall be sent to the
membership on the organization’s listserv. During the 10 days following notification on
the listserv, any member in good standing may file a protest regarding the applicant’s
membership. The identity of members who file protests shall not be revealed. If there is
no protest filed during the 10 days following notification on the listserv, the application
shall be considered complete, and the membership status shall no longer be
provisional.

B. ADJUDICATION OF A PROTEST. At the end of the protest period, if a
protest is filed, the designated board member or committee receiving applications and
protests shall forward such protest to the officers of the board of directors who shall
serve as the adjudicating committee for such protests. The officers or their designee
shall notify the applicant that a protest has been filed and the procedure for



consideration of such protest. The officers of the board of directors may call a special
meeting of the officers to consider said protest. Within 15 days of the end of the protest
period, the officers or their designee shall notify the applicant of the basic protest
reasoning and give notice that the applicant may, within 10 days, present a written
response to be considered by the officers when considering the membership
application. Within 60 days from the date of the protest period, the officers shall make
the determination of whether to approve the membership application. If a split decision
of the officers shall occur, the Past President shall hold authority to cast a tie-breaking
vote. If the officers fail to act within 60 days from the date of the protest period, the
application shall be considered complete, and the membership status shall no longer be
provisional.

ARTICLE VII

SECTION 1. DUES. Dues for full, affiliate, business affiliate, and student members shall
be set for the upcoming year by the full board of directors at the annual conference. Life
members shall be exempt from dues. Effective January 1, 2013 and subject to a protest
filed pursuant to Article VI, Section 3, an individual who accepts a chief administrative
officer position for the first time with a Kansas city or county and was not previously a
full member of KACM shall be granted a complimentary full membership for their first
year of KACM membership.

SECTION 2. MEMBERSHIP. Membership shall reside with the individual, regardless of
who pays the membership dues.

ARTICLE VI

SECTION 1. CODE OF ETHICS: SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION OF MEMBERS. All
members shall, as a condition of membership, agree to be voluntarily governed by a
professional code of ethics approved by the membership. The board of directors shall
establish a policy and procedures for handling complaints against members and for
investigation and elimination thereof. A violation of such code will be considered reason
for appropriate disciplinary action as herein provided.

SECTION 2. ETHICS COMMITTEE. The board of directors shall constitute a standing
committee of professional standards and shall adopt rules of procedure for the
committee’s operation.

SECTION 3. DISCIPLINARY ACTION. Using its ethics policy and procedures, the
board of directors may censure, suspend or expel a member for any violation of the
code of ethics of the association and shall notify the member promptly of its action. The
member may, if so desired, present a written and/or oral defense to be considered by
the board which may rescind or modify its earlier decision. If the board’s action is for
public censure, suspension or expulsion, notice shall be given to all members of KACM,
the legislative body and/or supervisor for whom the member works or worked at the



time, the executive director and appropriate regional vice president of ICMA and
appropriate news media.

SECTION 4. JURISDICTION. The code of ethics and procedures relating thereto are
applicable to members who voluntarily agree to accept the KACM code as a condition of
membership.

ARTICLE IX

SECTION 1. REGULAR MEETINGS. The association usually holds regular meetings
three times a year, at the annual conference and in conjunction with the KCCM
Conference at the University of Kansas and the WSU Winter Seminar. Meetings may be
held virtually or by teleconference as circumstances dictate.

SECTION 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS. The board may call a special meeting of the
association by a maijority vote of the board. Written notification of a special meeting
shall be sent to members using the listserv at least ten (10) days prior to the date
established by the board for the meeting.

SECTION 3. AGENDA. The board shall be responsible for preparation of agendas for
all meetings of the association. The order of business shall be as follows: (1) report on
the minutes of the previous meeting; (2) review of financial statements; (3) reports of
committees; (4) unfinished business; (5) election of officers; (6) new business; (7)
adjournment. This order of business may be altered or suspended by a majority of
members eligible to vote.

ARTICLE X

SECTION 1. OFFICERS. The board of directors shall elect a president, vice president,
secretary and treasurer. Persons so elected shall ascend to the next higher office the
following year unless the board takes action to so otherwise elect persons to said
offices. The president and vice president shall not be eligible to succeed themselves in
office.

A. PRESIDENT. The president shall set the agenda and lead the meetings of the
board of directors and of the association. The president shall designate
committees as determined to be in the best interest of the association and
appoint committee chairs.

B. VICE PRESIDENT. In the absence, disability, refusal or inability to act of the
president, the vice president shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of
the president and shall perform such other duties as the board may from time to
time prescribe. The vice president shall chair the Conference Planning
Committee.



C. SECRETARY. The secretary shall ensure the minutes of all meetings of the
association and the board of directors are kept in a permanent manner and are
made available to members at meetings and as requested by the membership.
The secretary shall chair the Awards Committee.

D. TREASURER. The treasurer shall transact necessary financial business of the
association, ensuring a complete record of all transactions which shall be
submitted at the annual conference of the association. The treasurer shall be
responsible for collection and accounting of dues from members and serve as a
trustee of the Foundation Fund.

E. PAST PRESIDENT. The past president shall be an ex-officio member of the
board without voting privileges and shall serve as liaison to Senior Advisors.

ARTICLE XI

SECTION 1. AMENDMENTS. These bylaws may be amended or repealed by two-
thirds vote of the full and affiliate members present at a meeting of the association. A
motion to amend or repeal may be presented either by the Board of Directors or by five
full members who have initiated an amendment and presented it to the President in
advance of the meeting.

Notes:

The ICMA Code of Ethics and Guidelines for professional conduct were adopted as
KACM'’s code and guidelines at the May 6, 1977 KACM business meeting.

The KACCM name change was adopted at the May 7, 1992 business meeting.

The prior Constitution and Bylaws were merged into one document at the KACM Annual
Fall Conference in Garden City, November 12, 2010.

Bylaws were amended at the KACM Annual Conference in Dodge City, December 7,
2012; KACM Annual Conference in Manhattan, December 5, 2014; KACM meeting in
Lawrence, April 28, 2016; KACM Membership Meeting in Lawrence, April 27, 2017; and
KACM Membership Meeting online on December 3, 2020-



Kansas Association of City/County Management

Upcoming Events

2025

League Local Government Day
January 22
Topeka

ICMA Local Gov’t Reimagined
February 26-28
Denver, CO

NLC Congressional City
March 10-12
Washington, DC

ICMA Local Gov’t Reimagined
April 2-4
Milwaukee, WI

KCCM Spring Conference
April 24, 25
Lawrence

WSU City/County Summit
June 12
Wichita

League Annual Conference
October 9-11
Overland Park

ICMA Annual Conference
October 26-29
Tampa, FL

NLC City Summit
November 19-22
Salt Lake City, UT

KACM Annual Conference
Dec 3-5
Emporia

KAC Annual Conference
Dec 9-11
Wichita

2026

League Local Government Day
January 28
Topeka

ICMA Local Gov’t Reimagined
April 8-10
Orlando, FL

NLC Congressional City
March, 16-18
Washington, DC

KCCM Spring Conference
April TBD
Lawrence

ICMA Local Gov’t Reimagined
June 3-5
Philadelphia, PA

WSU City/County Summit
June, TBD
Wichita

League Annual Conference
October 8-10
Wichita

ICMA Annual Conference
October 18-21
Long Beach, CA

NLC City Summit
November 19-21
Nashville, TN

KACM Annual Conference
Dec 2-4
Salina/Saline County

KAC Annual Conference
Dec 9-11
Wichita




	1 August Retreat Agenda
	2 April 2025 - Minutes
	3 KACM financials 073125
	kacm bud.pdf
	inv.pdf

	4 League invoice 10357
	5 Senior Advisor Application.Hannes
	KACM letter
	Hannes RESUME 2025

	6 KACM Bylaws Review 08.25
	7 2025 - 2026  Upcoming Events Calendar

